
1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

4. CONSENT CALENDAR

4.A. APPROVE AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING FOR THE SPECIAL SOLID WASTE AND
RECYCLING COMMITTEE MEETING OF JULY 13, 2023
RECOMMENDATION: Approve.

4.B. APPROVE THE FOLLOWING SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING COMMITTEE
MINUTES: APRIL 6, 2023 AND MAY 23, 2023
RECOMMENDATION: Approve as presented.

5. OLD BUSINESS

5.A. DISCUSS WASTE AND RECYCLING SERVICES PROVIDED BY REPUBLIC
SERVICES IN MEETING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS
RECOMMENDATION: Receive report, discuss the item and provide direction
to staff.

6. NEW BUSINESS

7. ITEMS FROM STAFF

8. ITEMS FROM SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING COMMITTEE

9. ADJOURNMENT
Next meeting: To be determined in the City Council Chamber, Rolling Hills City Hall, 2

  2 PORTUGUESE BEND ROAD
ROLLING HILLS, CA 90274

(310) 377-1521
   
AGENDA
Special Solid Waste &
Recycling Committee Meeting

SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING
COMMITTEE

Thursday, July 13, 2023

CITY OF ROLLING HILLS
1:00 PM

 

  

  

  

  

 CL_AGN_230713_SWR_AffidavitofPosting.pdf
 

 CL_MIN_230406_SWR.pdf
CL_MIN_230523_SWR.pdf

 

  

 CL_AGN_230523_SWC_StaffReport_RepublicServices.pdf
 

  

  

  

1

https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rollinghills/cf31a9ccf0e79aa830cc27b5097125240.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2055628/CL_AGN_230713_SWR_AffidavitofPosting.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rollinghills/c31da0f9a0b01d7485e0a6a6724cfe0e0.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2055685/CL_MIN_230406_SWR.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2055686/CL_MIN_230523_SWR.pdf
https://d2kbkoa27fdvtw.cloudfront.net/rollinghills/6157ea90942cdda86fbf4a089435ecf00.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2055337/CL_AGN_230523_SWC_StaffReport_RepublicServices.pdf


Portuguese Bend Road, Rolling Hills, California, 90274.
  

Notice:

Documents pertaining to an agenda item received after the posting of the agenda are available for review in
the City Clerk's office or at the meeting at which the item will be considered.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting due to your disability, please contact the City Clerk at (310) 377-1521 at least 48 hours prior to the
meeting to enable the City to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility and accommodation for
your review of this agenda and attendance at this meeting.

2



Agenda Item No.: 4.A 
Mtg. Date: 07/13/2023

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM: CHRISTIAN HORVATH, CITY CLERK / EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO
CITY MANAGER

THRU: ELAINE JENG P.E., CITY MANAGER

SUBJECT: APPROVE AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING FOR THE SPECIAL SOLID WASTE
AND RECYCLING COMMITTEE MEETING OF JULY 13, 2023

DATE: July 13, 2023

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND:
None.
 
DISCUSSION:
None.
 
FISCAL IMPACT:
None.
 
RECOMMENDATION:
Approve. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:
CL_AGN_230713_SWR_AffidavitofPosting.pdf

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2055628/CL_AGN_230713_SWR_AffidavitofPosting.pdf


 
 

 
 

 

Administrative Report 
 
 

 
4.A., File # 1911            Meeting Date: 7/13/2023 
 
 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES )  §§ 
CITY OF ROLLING HILLS  ) 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 
In compliance with the Brown Act, the following materials have been posted at the locations below. 
 
Legislative Body  Solid Waste and Recycling Committee 
 
Posting Type   Special Meeting Agenda 
 
Posting Location  2 Portuguese Bend Road, Rolling Hills, CA 90274 
    City Hall Window 
    City Website: https://www.rolling-hills.org/government/agenda/index.php 
              https://www.rolling-hills.org/government/city_council/city_council_archive_agendas/index.php 
 
 
Meeting Date & Time  JULY 13, 2023  1:00pm  
 
As City Clerk of the City of Rolling Hills, I declare under penalty of perjury, the document noted above was 
posted at the date displayed below. 
 
 
 
 
Christian Horvath, City Clerk 
 
Date: July 10, 2023 

4

https://www.rolling-hills.org/government/agenda/index.php
https://www.rolling-hills.org/government/city_council/city_council_archive_agendas/index.php


Agenda Item No.: 4.B 
Mtg. Date: 07/13/2023

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM: CHRISTIAN HORVATH, CITY CLERK / EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT TO
CITY MANAGER

THRU: ELAINE JENG P.E., CITY MANAGER

SUBJECT: APPROVE THE FOLLOWING SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING
COMMITTEE MINUTES: APRIL 6, 2023 AND MAY 23, 2023

DATE: July 13, 2023

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND:
None.
 
DISCUSSION:
None. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:
None.
 
RECOMMENDATION:
Approve as presented.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:
CL_MIN_230406_SWR.pdf
CL_MIN_230523_SWR.pdf

5

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2055685/CL_MIN_230406_SWR.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2055686/CL_MIN_230523_SWR.pdf


MINUTES – SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING COMMITTEE MEETING 
Thursday, April 6, 2023 
Page 1 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Rolling Hills Solid Waste & Recycling Committee 
Thursday, April 6, 2023 

Special Meeting 4:00 p.m. 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
The Solid Waste & Recycling Committee of the City of Rolling Hills met on the above date at 4:10 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Mirsch, Mayor Wilson 
Members Absent: None 
Staff Present:    John Signo, Planning & Community Services Director 

Christian Horvath, City Clerk / Executive Assistant to the City Manager 
Robert Samario, Finance Director (virtually) 

    
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS – NONE 
 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – NONE 
 
5. OLD BUSINESS – NONE 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS  
 
6.A.  DEVELOPMENT OF POLICIES OR AN ORDINANCE FOR APPLICABLE TO REFUSE SERVICE 

BILLINGS 
 

Presentation by Finance Director Robert Samario 
 
The committee discussed and will recommend to the City Council at a future meeting the establishment of 
policies for all residential premises that have any kind of development (habitable or otherwise), structure(s), 
or any other kind of improvement that would be billed for solid waste services each year. Vacant residential 
premises without any development, structure(s) or any improvement would not be billed for solid waste 
services. Residential premises that are set to not be billed for solid waste services could opt into solid waste 
services for activity on the vacant Residential Premises. In order to opt in, the owner (or authorized 
representative) must submit a request in writing to the City that acknowledges that the Residential Premises 
will be assessed at the same rate as every other Residential Premises in the City that is billed for solid waste 
services. 
 
7. ITEMS FROM STAFF – NONE 
 
8. ITEMS FROM SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING COMMITTEE – NONE 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT:   5:29 P.M.     
  
The meeting was adjourned at 5:29 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 

6



MINUTES – SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING COMMITTEE MEETING 
Thursday, April 6, 2023 
Page 2 

        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
        ____________________________________ 
        Christian Horvath, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved, 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Patrick Wilson, Mayor 
 

7



MINUTES – SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING COMMITTEE MEETING 
Tuesday, May 23, 2023 
Page 1 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Rolling Hills Solid Waste & Recycling Committee 
Tuesday, May 23, 2023 

Special Meeting 4:00 p.m. 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
The Solid Waste & Recycling Committee of the City of Rolling Hills met on the above date at 4:03 p.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Mirsch, Mayor Wilson 
Members Absent: None 
Staff Present:    John Signo, Planning & Community Services Director 

Christian Horvath, City Clerk / Executive Assistant to the City Manager 
    
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS – NONE 
 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – NONE 
 
5. OLD BUSINESS – NONE 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS  
 
6.A.  DISCUSS REPUBLIC SERVICES REQUEST REGARDING A MODIFICATION TO SOLID WASTE 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
 

Presentation by Planning & Community Services Director John Signo 
     Republic Services representative Dawn Harris 
 
The committee received information from Republic that the City is currently meeting and exceeding state 
requirements without mixed waste processing or transformation. Republic is concerned about language in 
the current Refuse Agreement that could be interpreted as Republic being in violation of the agreement and 
presented potential options to cure the issues caused by their facility’s inability to operate. 
 
The Committee asked questions and expressed concerns about resident perception, other options for 
Republic to solve their issues, and the ramifications of potentially modifying the agreement terms. 
 
Ms. Harris stated that Republic would go back to the drawing board and share the Committee’s comments 
with the General Manager and President of Republic Services and return for a future meeting with a more 
formal proposal of ideas. 
 
7. ITEMS FROM STAFF – NONE 
 
8. ITEMS FROM SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING COMMITTEE – NONE 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT:   5:28 P.M.     
  
The meeting was adjourned at 5:28 p.m. 
 
 
 

8



MINUTES – SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING COMMITTEE MEETING 
Tuesday, May 23, 2023 
Page 2 

 
 
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
        ____________________________________ 
        Christian Horvath, City Clerk 
 
 
Approved, 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Patrick Wilson, Mayor 
 

9



Agenda Item No.: 5.A 
Mtg. Date: 07/13/2023

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM: JOHN SIGNO, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES

THRU: ELAINE JENG P.E., CITY MANAGER

SUBJECT: DISCUSS WASTE AND RECYCLING SERVICES PROVIDED BY
REPUBLIC SERVICES IN MEETING COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

DATE: July 13, 2023

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND:
On July 1, 2020, the City entered into an Amended and Restated Agreement (Agreement) with
Republic Services for residential solid waste management services for the collection,
transportation, recycling, composting and disposal of solid waste, including recyclable
materials, green waste, bulky items, and brush. The City Council obtained the services of
HF&H Consultants, LLC (HF&H), to assist with preparing the Agreement, which ends on June
30, 2029.
 
Republic Services provides services to the City all weekdays, except for Wednesday. Section
5.8 of the Agreement requires all collected solid waste other than green waste and brush to be
delivered to a material recovery facility for mixed waste processing. This allows residents to
put all solid waste into one container which is sorted at Republic Services' facilities. Solid
waste is collected using scooter vehicles which drive up private driveways to the service yard.
Workers hand lift solid waste from containers onto the scooter vehicle, which then returns to a
much larger mother truck to consolidate the waste. The waste is then brought to a
consolidated volume transfer (CVT) processing facility to be sorted and transported.
 
On February 28, 2022, Republic Services sent the City a letter indicating its CVT processing
facility in Anaheim, which in part serves the City of Rolling Hills, was significantly damaged
due to fire on February 22, 2022. Republic Services indicated this was a "force majeure" event
pursuant to Section 27.1 of the Agreement which affected their ability to perform processing of
the City's residential recyclables and organic materials under the terms of the Agreement.
Republic Services began diverting the City's collected materials to other facilities on a
temporary basis until the damaged facility could be rebuilt or other permanent solutions could
be considered.
 
On April 24, 2023, staff met with representatives from Republic Services about mixed use
processing services to the City. The representatives indicated there is no timeline as to when

10



the damaged building would be repaired which negatively affects their ability to serve the City.
Further, the scooter service offered to the single-family homes in Rolling Hills is unique and
not offered anywhere else in the area. In the past, CalRecycle was able to offer credits for
waste transformation but those credits are no longer available as of January 1, 2023.
 
On May 8, 2023, the City Council discussed the matter and referred it to the Solid Waste &
Recycling Committee.
 
On May 23, 2023, the Solid Waste & Recycling Committee held a meeting and discussed
services provided by Republic Services. The Committee expressed that it did not want to see
services changed and did not see an issue with the existing contract. Dawn Benton of
Republic Services indicated they are currently in compliance with the 30% diversion
requirement as well as the State's recycling requirement but would not want to be out of
compliance if circumstances change. The meeting was adjourned with direction to Ms. Benton
to discuss with Republic Services' management and report back to the Committee.
 
DISCUSSION:
At the May 23, 2023 meeting, Republic Services proposed two options: (1) having
Wednesdays be recycling day; and (2) modifying the Agreement so it only requires a 10%
diversion rate of mixed use processing as opposed to 30% as stated in Section 12.1 of the
Agreement. The Committee indicated it was not in favor of changing service or the terms in
the Agreement. 
 
Ms. Benton has discussed the issue with her management and returned with the following
three points:

1. New Pilot Recycle Program: Rolling Hills Recycles Day . Stage a roll off container
one day per month for residents to drop off recyclable items. Items collected will be
used towards the City's recycling requirements.

2. Use of green waste recycling for diversion credits . Include green waste as an
acceptable item to count towards the City's diversion requirements.

3. City recycle requirements match with CalRecycle per capita requirements . Since
the overall goal for any city is to meet CalRecycle requirements, discuss merits of
Rolling Hills specific goals mirroring those of CalRecycle.

 
The City has an obligation to report recycling activities to CalRecycle. The Committee should
consider ways to promote and increase recycling activities and find ways to provide accurate
reports. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:
None.
 
RECOMMENDATION:
Receive report, discuss the item and provide direction to staff.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
CL_AGN_230523_SWC_StaffReport_RepublicServices.pdf

11

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2055337/CL_AGN_230523_SWC_StaffReport_RepublicServices.pdf


Agenda Item No.: 6.A 
Mtg. Date: 05/23/2023

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL

FROM: JOHN SIGNO, DIRECTOR OF PLANNING & COMMUNITY SERVICES

THRU: ELAINE JENG P.E., CITY MANAGER

SUBJECT: DISCUSS REPUBLIC SERVICES REQUEST REGARDING A
MODIFICATION TO SOLID WASTE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

DATE: May 23, 2023

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
BACKGROUND:
On July 1, 2020, the City entered into an Amended and Restated Agreement (Agreement) with
Republic Services for residential solid waste management services for the collection,
transportation, recycling, composting and disposal of solid waste, including recyclable
materials, green waste, bulky items, and brush. The City Council obtained the services of
HF&H Consultants, LLC (HF&H), to assist with preparing the Agreement, which ends on June
30, 2029.
 
Republic Services provides services to the City all weekdays, except for Wednesday. Section
5.8 of the Agreement requires all collected solid waste other than green waste and brush to be
delivered to a material recovery facility for mixed waste processing. This allows residents to
put all solid waste into one container which is sorted at Republic Services' facilities. Solid
waste is collected using scooter vehicles which drive up private driveways to the service yard.
Workers hand lift solid waste from containers onto the scooter vehicle, which then returns to a
much larger mother truck to consolidate the waste. The waste is then brought to a
consolidated volume transfer (CVT) processing facility to be sorted and transported.
 
On February 28, 2022, Republic Services sent the City a letter indicating its CVT processing
facility in Anaheim, which in part serves the City of Rolling Hills, was significantly damaged
due to fire on February 22, 2022. Republic Services indicated this was a "force majeure" event
pursuant to Section 27.1 of the Agreement which affected their ability to perform processing of
the City's residential recyclables and organic materials under the terms of the Agreement.
Republic Services began diverting the City's collected materials to other facilities on a
temporary basis until the damaged facility could be rebuilt or other permanent solutions could
be considered.
 
On April 24, 2023, staff met with representatives from Republic Services about mixed use
processing services to the City. The representatives indicated there is no timeline as to when

212



the damaged building would be repaired which negatively affects their ability to serve the City.
Further, the scooter service offered to the single-family homes in Rolling Hills is unique and
not offered anywhere else in the area. In the past, CalRecycle was able to offer credits for
waste transformation but those credits are no longer available as of January 1, 2023.
 
On May 8, 2023, the City Council discussed the matter and referred it to the Solid Waste &
Recycling Committee.
 
DISCUSSION:
Since services are provided all week, except Wednesdays, Republic Services is proposing
Wednesdays to be recycling day. The rest of the week would be for regular trash pick up and
Wednesdays would be for recycling in 35-gallon containers. Staff expressed concern with this
option since residents have relief from trash trucks on Wednesday. Additionally, residents
would have to be informed and retrained on how to separate and dispose of waste. Further,
additional costs would be incurred by the City for the additional day of service.
 

Another option would be to amend the Agreement so it only requires of diversion rate of 10%
mixed use processing as opposed to 30% as stated in Section 12.1 of the Agreement. The
Agreement does allow either party to request an adjustment to the minimum diversion rate not
more than once every two years. Modifications to the Agreement are covered under Section
25. According to Section 12.1, adjustments can be made "based on factors including waste
characterization data provided by Contractor, trends in source reduction and reuse, trends in
third party Diversion, extent of reverse logistics, the availability of permitted Facilities that are
capable of processing material to achieve the required levels of Diversion, emerging methods
of processing and Recycling/reusing new waste materials, the availability of markets,
transportation constraints, embargoes, and the impact of scavenging. City shall consider such
information provided by Contractor and other industry data and shall, at its sole discretion,
determine if any adjustments to the minimum Diversion requirements shall be made, and such
changes must be approved by the City Council before becoming effective."

 
Since the May 8th City Council meeting, Dawn Benton of Republic Services has provided
further insight:
 

The CVT facility is slowly being rebuilt and a “back in service date” has not been
determined. As such, Republic Services is unsure whether it will have the ability to
process waste for recycling (mixed waste processing (MWP)) as this practice is outdated
and is required in only one other city other than Rolling Hills. (MWP requirements are
being reviewed there as well.)

 

In Rolling Hills, the consultant (HFH) recommended the 30% diversion requirement at
the time of the 2019-2020 agreement negotiations. Although Republic Services
attempted a reduction at the time to 10% or 20%, the consultant persisted, and the City
agreed to keep it at 30% stating that it would ensure that CalRecycle targets would be
met.

 

313



2022 average diversion was 35%, without mixed waste processing, but did include
transformation.

 

2023 Q1 diversion is 39.75% without MWP and without transformation. Thus, the
requirement is already being met without MWP or transformation so far this year.

 

For Rolling Hills to meet the State’s 50% recycling requirement, CalRecycle set the
maximum allowable pounds (lbs.) of trash per person per year at 16.7 lbs. The city is
currently at 9 lbs. per person, which means that the City of Rolling Hills exceeds the
state recycling requirement by 23%. This demonstrates that the City can meet state
requirements without the existing diversion requirement.

 
FISCAL IMPACT:
None.
 
RECOMMENDATION:
Receive report, discuss the item and provide direction to staff.
 
ATTACHMENTS:
CA_AGR_2020 - Republic Services Agreement__FINAL.pdf
CL_AGN_220328_UnforseenCircumstances_CVTFire.pdf
Email_Dawn_Benton_230510.pdf

414

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1955841/2020_-_Republic_Services_Agreement__FINAL.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1955842/CL_AGN_220328_UnforseenCircumstances_CVTFire.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1958537/230510_Email_Dawn_Benton.pdf


515



616



717



818



919



1020



1121



1222



1323



1424



1525



1626



1727



1828



1929



2030



2131



2232



2333



2434



2535



2636



2737



2838



2939



3040



3141



3242



3343



3444



3545



3646



3747



3848



3949



4050



4151



4252



4353



4454



4555



4656



4757



4858



4959



5060



5161



5262



5363



5464



5565



5666



5767



5868



5969



6070



6171



6272



6373



6474



6575



6676



6777



6878



6979



7080



7181



7282



7383



7484



7585



7686



7787



7888



7989



8090



8191



8292



8393



8494



8595



8696



8797



8898



8999



90100



91101



92102



93103



94104



95105



96106



     

 City of Rolling Hills   INCORPORATED JANUARY 24, 1957  

 

NO. 2 PORTUGUESE BEND ROAD 

ROLLING HILLS, CA  90274 

(310) 377-1521 

FAX (310) 377-7288 

 
 

 - 1 - 

Agenda Item No.: 3-H  
Mtg. Date:  02-22-10 

 
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: ANTON DAHLERBRUCH, CITY MANAGER 

 
SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF A TRAFFIC COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDATION OF STAGING LOCATIONS FOR THE REFUSE 
HAULER’S “MOTHER TRUCK”. 

 
DATE: FEBRUARY 22, 2010 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

07-07-09 Memo from Traffic Engineer concerning staging locations 
 03-05-09 Memo from Traffic Engineer concerning staging locations 
 Summary List of Recommended Staging Locations 
 Notice Data for Addresses Adjacent to Proposed Staging Locations 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the Traffic Commission’s 
recommendation of 14 locations for Allied Waste to stage its “mother truck” (front 
loader) for the collection and transport of solid waste. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City’s refuse hauler, Allied Waste, operates through “scouts” that collect refuse at 
each residence and transports it to a “mother truck” at a central location. The “mother 
truck” moves throughout each day to different locations in the City that are central to 
the collection efforts in a particular area the “scouts” are working.  Allied Waste states 
that the “scouts,” for optimal operations, should cover an area consisting of 27 to 65 
residences.  As such, on each day refuse is collected, Allied Waste desires 7 to 8 
locations where the “mother truck” can be strategically stationed.  The “mother truck” 
would be (is) in each location for approximately 2 hours. 
 

97107



 

-2- 

Over the years, residents have complained about the staging location of the “mother 
truck” citing issues of noise, emissions, visual impact, leftover debris and leakage with 
the vehicles.  To address the complaints, Allied Waste has reduced and relocated the 
“mother truck” staging locations to a point where, according to Allied Waste, 
operations have been impacted.  Allied Waste reports that the reduction of staging 
locations has caused the “scouts” to cover 86 to 126 residences, drive longer from 
residences to the “mother truck” and, for the “mother truck” to be stationed in one 
location for extended periods of time.  As such, Allied Waste has requested the formal 
designation of staging locations. 
 
In response to Allied Waste’s request, the City’s Traffic Engineer and City Manager, on 
multiple occasions toured the City with Allied Waste representatives to identify 
locations that served Allied Waste operationally while also addressing the Traffic 
Engineer’s concerns for traffic safety.  Fourteen (14) locations were identified that met 
both parties’ interests.  Thereafter, at its meetings of March 26, July 23 and September 
24, 2009, and its meeting of January 28, 2010, the Traffic Commission considered Allied 
Waste’s request for approval of the 14 locations to stage the “mother truck.” 
 
For Traffic Commission meeting on March 26, 2009, notice of the agenda item was 
mailed to all residents adjacent to proposed staging locations and information about the 
meeting was included in the City Newsletter.  In response, the Traffic Commission 
received input from residents about the locations at Portuguese Bend Road/Ranchero 
Road (for visibility); Crest Road East, east of Eastfield Drive (for noise and traffic); and 
Saddleback Road near Hillside Lane (for impact on horses).  As a result, the Allied 
Waste representative and City Traffic Engineer re-evaluated the three locations for 
functionality, safety and alternatives. 
 
For the July 23, 2009 Traffic Commission meeting, notice of the agenda item was mailed 
to the resident from Portuguese Bend Road/Ranchero Road; the residents closest to the 
proposed staging location at Crest Road East; and the residents from 26 Saddleback 
Road to Hillside Lane.  At the meeting, the Traffic Commission concluded that there 
was no alternative for the staging locations at Portuguese Bend Road/Ranchero Road 
and at Crest Road East and both represented the best functional location for Allied 
Waste, presented no traffic concern to the City Traffic Engineer and was not 
immediately adjacent to a residential structure (relative to noise).  Additionally, it was 
noted without these staging locations, the impact of “scouts” traveling longer distances 
and the “mother truck” being stationed in one location longer is greater on the 
community. In regard to the Crest Road East site, Allied Waste proposed operating on 
the southside rather than the northside of the roadway.  Also, in response to the 
residents of 76 Eastfield Drive, the Traffic Commission agreed to continue the 
discussion of this location to September 24. 
 
For the September 24, 2009 Traffic Commission meeting, notice of the agenda item was 
mailed to 76 Eastfield Drive, and two other residents who had expressed interest on the 

98108



 

-3- 

topic – a resident adjacent to Wagon Lane and a resident on Chuckwagon Road at 
Eastfield Drive.  At the meeting, the Traffic Commission received input from the 
resident adjacent to Wagon Lane (32 Portuguese Bend Road) about the emissions 
generated from the “mother truck” when stationed on Wagon Lane, expressing concern 
about its health impacts.  In response, Allied Waste reported that their vehicles meet the 
State’s emissions requirements and, replacement “mother trucks” would soon be 
employed that will reduce emissions further.  Allied Waste and the Traffic Engineer 
also stated that there was no operational and safe alternative to this staging location.  
However, in recognition of the concern, staff was directed to re-consider locations.  In 
regard to the Crest Road East staging location, the residents of 76 Eastfield Drive, who 
could not attend the meeting, asked that the matter be continued.   
 
For the January 28, 2010 Traffic Commission meeting, notice of the agenda item was 
mailed to 32 Portuguese Bend Road and 76 Eastfield Drive. With regard to the proposed 
staging location on Crest Road East, Allied Waste stated that it would be used on an as-
needed basis and, when utilized, the “mother truck” would be stationed in a location to 
minimize the noise impact on the residence.  Despite the resident’s desire to limit the 
number of days Allied Waste might use this area, the Traffic Commission supported 
this site as a staging location. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Traffic Commission has reviewed and supports the 14 locations identified by Allied 
Waste and the City’s Traffic Engineer for staging the “mother truck” for the collection 
of solid waste.  As such, the City Council is requested to consider and approve the 
Traffic Commission’s recommendation per Allied Waste’s request. 
 
NOTIFICATION 
 
Notice of this matter before the City Council has been provided to the community 
through the routine procedure of publishing the agenda in the citywide newsletter as 
well as through legal posting at City Hall. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
Allied Waste is fully aware that they must keep their staging sites clear of debris and 
residue, contain refuse that falls out of their “scouts” and maintain their high quality 
service.  Such conditions, in combination with the topography of the City and service 
levels desired by the community, leave few options for the method of refuse collection 
in the City.  The “mother truck”/”scout” collection method of refuse collection appears 
the only functional means of collecting refuse at this time so designated staging 
locations are necessary.   
 
 

99109



 

-4- 

AD:hl 

100110



Summary of Citywide "Mother Truck" Staging Locations

Area 1

Location Current 

Staging 

Location

Requested as 

Staging Location

Recommende

d

Saddleback Road and 

Roadrunner Road
X X

Wagon Lane X X

Georgeff Road X X

Lower Blackwater Canyon 

Rd.  and Middleridge Lane 

North

X

Saddleback Road (between 

36 and 42)
X X

Area 2

Location Current 

Staging 

Location

Requested as 

Staging Location

Recommende

d

Caballeros Road and Crest 

Road East
X X

Crest Road East and 

Eastfield Drive
X X

Chuckwagon Road and 

Eastfield Drive
X X

Outrider Road and Eastfield 

Drive
X X

Southfield Drive and 

Packsaddle Road East
X X

Area 3

Location Current 

Staging 

Location

Requested as 

Staging Location

Recommende

d

Southfield Drive and 

Packsaddle Road East
X X

Portuguese Bend Road 

South and Ranchero Rd.
X X

Qualiridge Road North X X

6/24/2020

101111



Summary of Citywide "Mother Truck" Staging Locations

Buggy Whip Drive X X

Johns Canyon Road X X

6/24/2020

102112



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1 

Memorandum 

TO:  
Anton Dahlerbruch, City Manager 

FROM:  
Vanessa Munoz, City Traffic Engineer 

DATE: 
July 7, 2009 

SUBJECT: 
Citywide Allied Waste “ Mother Truck” loading stationing areas 

 

 

 

This memo is in response to the Traffic Commissioner’s request to re-evaluate three (3) staging 
locations for the Allied Waste “Mother Truck.”   The locations being re-evaluated are:  

 Area 1- Saddleback Road  ( near Hillside) 

 Area 2 - Crest Road E. and Eastfield Drive 

 Area 3 - Portuguese Bend South and Ranchero Road 

 
On May 21, 2009, Sam Pena, from Allied Waste, and I went out and re-evaluated the three 
locations for: 

 Visibility for Allied Waste vehicles, other vehicles, pedestrians and equestrians;  

 Width of street;  

 Traffic volumes; 

 Driving distance for each Scout to the “Mother Truck” location; 

 Impact to passing traffic at each location.   
 
The Area 1 location of Saddleback Road (near Hillside) was re-evaluated. The main concern 
expressed by the resident of 3 Hillside Lane was that her horse would get easily scared when the 
“Mother Truck” parked between the Saddleback easement and the riding fence.  The roadway 
characteristics along Saddleback Road in this particular area of the City allow for the truck to be 
stationed further north from this location.   I recommend the “Mother Truck” be stationed between 
36 and 42 Saddleback Road.  This location provides visibility for vehicles, equestrian riders and 
the Allied Waste truck. 
 
The Area 2 location of Crest Road E. and Eastfield was re-evaluated.  The main concern was 
noise and its proximity to the resident’s home.  The parking of the truck on Eastfield Drive east of 
Crest Road is an acceptable location; the “Mother Truck” does not impede vehicle visibility and 
gives the Allied Waste vehicles easy access, the roadway has a low traffic volume and has the 
least impact to passing traffic.  However, to accommodate the concerns of the residents, I 
recommend the truck be parked on the south side of Eastfield Drive.  This should eliminate some 
of the noise and the truck would not be adjacent to the resident’s home. 
 
The Area 3 location of Portuguese Bend South and Ranchero Road was re-evaluated.  The main 
concern was visibility for northbound traffic.   The parking of the truck at the present location is an 
acceptable location.  From my field observation the northbound traffic is able to see the truck 

103113



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 

Memorandum 

when driving up hill.  Additionally, since drivers are traveling at low speeds due to the grade on the 
hill, most drivers have enough time to react and stop if needed. I also evaluated the 
recommendation of 52 Portuguese Bend Road south as a possible staging location, however the 
“Mother Truck” cannot park on dirt roads and unless this area gets asphalt it cannot serve as a 
staging area. 
 
 
 
 
VM:mec (06160) 
16878/1002/M02 

104114



105115



106116



107117



108118



109119



1

John Signo

From: Benton, Dawn <DHarris@republicservices.com>
Sent: Wednesday, May 10, 2023 5:33 PM
To: John Signo
Cc: Griffin, Tonya
Subject: RE: Solid Waste/Recycling Committee Meeting

Hello John, 
Just returning from PTO today and watched this week’s Council Meeting on YouTube. 
 
Here are some notes to assist with the discussion at the upcoming May 23rd Committee meeting. 
 

 It is true that although our CVT facility is slowly being rebuilt, we have not been given a “back in service 
date”. Additionally, we are simply unsure whether we will have the ability to process waste for recycling 
(mixed waste processing) as this practice is outdated and is required in only one other City that we 
service. (*mwp requirements are being reviewed there as well) 
 

 In Rolling Hills, the consultant (HFH) recommended the 30% diversion requirement at the time of the 
2019-2020 agreement negotiations. Although we attempted a reduction at the time to 10 or 20%, the 
consultant persisted, and the city agreed to keep it at 30% stating that it would ensure that CalRecycle 
targets would be met. 
 

 2022 average diversion was 35%, without mixed waste processing, but did include transformation. 
 

 2023 Q1 diversion is 39.75% without mixed waste processing and without transformation. Looks like 
the requirement is already being met without mixed waste processing or transformation so far this year. 
 

 For Rolling Hills to meet the State’s 50% recycling requirement, CalRecycle set the maximum allowable 
lbs. of trash per person per year at 16.7. The city is currently at 9lbs per person, which means that the 
City of Rolling Hills exceeds the state recycling requirement by 23%. This is fantastic news which 
supports the city being able to meet requirements without use of mwp or transformation. Also 
demonstrates that the city can meet state requirements without the use of a consultant and without the 
existing diversion requirement. 
 

 
Please call me at any time to discuss or share any questions that you may have. 
Thanks, 
Dawn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

From: John Signo <jsigno@cityofrh.net>  
Sent: Tuesday, May 9, 2023 3:37 PM 

110120



2

To: Griffin, Tonya <TGriffin@republicservices.com>; Benton, Dawn <DHarris@republicservices.com> 
Subject: Solid Waste/Recycling Committee Meeting 
 
Hi Tonya and Daw n, Last nig ht, City Council re ferred the solid waste services issue to the Solid Waste/Recycli ng CommiƩee. The CommiƩee’ s ne xt mee Ɵng is Tuesday, May 23, 2 023, at 4 p.  m. here at City Hall. Please mark your calendar s  
ZjQcmQRYFpfptBa nnerStart 

 

This Message Is From an External Sender  

This message came from outside your organization.  
    Report Suspicious    

 

ZjQcmQRYFpfptBa nnerE nd 

Hi Tonya and Dawn, 
 
Last night, City Council referred the solid waste services issue to the Solid Waste/Recycling CommiƩee. The CommiƩee’s 
next meeƟng is Tuesday, May 23, 2023, at 4 p.m. here at City Hall. Please mark your calendars and plan on aƩending. I 
will have the agenda to you prior to the meeƟng. 
 
Thanks, 
 
John F. Signo, AICP 
Director of Planning and Community Services 
 
City of Rolling Hills 
2 Portuguese Bend Road, Rolling Hills, CA 90274 
310.377.1521 
jsigno@cityofrh.net 
 

111121


	SOLID WASTE & RECYCLING COMMITTEE Agenda
	Item 4.A - Cover Page
	Item 4.A - CL_AGN_230713_SWR_AffidavitofPosting.pdf
	Item 4.B - Cover Page
	Item 4.B - CL_MIN_230406_SWR.pdf
	Item 4.B - CL_MIN_230523_SWR.pdf
	Item 5.A - Cover Page
	Item 5.A - CL_AGN_230523_SWC_StaffReport_RepublicServices.pdf



